
This PDF Package contains multiple files grouped 
together within a single PDF file.

Nuance PDF Converter Professional 5, and other recent PDF viewers, can 
be used to view and work with the files contained within this package.

To get started, click any file in this PDF Package to view it.

	 ·	 	PDF	packages	group	multiple	files	and	file	types	together	
for	ease	of	distribution	and	sharing.

	 ·	 	PDF	packages	organize	related	files	for	easier	viewing		
and	printing.

	 ·	 	PDF	packages	maintain	the	original	security	settings	for	
each	document	included	in	the	package.

Note: In older PDF viewers/editors,  
the files are stored as attachments.

Don’t have PDF Packaging capabilities today? 

Click here to find out more about  
PDF Converter Professional

http://www.nuance.com/pdfconverter/professional/


















1


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, December 7, 2010


Stoughton Room, Stoughton Area Senior Center


Present: Edna Cloutier, Kay Davis, Carol Heidenway, Kelli Krcma, Don Mix, Betty Thompson
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho
Absent & Excused: David Bacon, Mary Onsager, Jeanne Schwass-Long, David Sharpe,
Charlotte Snow, Larry Weiss


Call to order: K. Krcma called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM.


Minutes of November 2, 2010:
Moved by C. Heidenway and, seconded by D. Mix, to approve minutes; passed unanimously.


Compliments & Concerns:
 It’s Cold! We hope this does not detour anyone from coming to the Madrigal Dinner today.
 The lower level carpet will be cleaned Thursday afternoon.
 C. Heidenway commented that the newsletter is outstanding. A representative from Liturgical


Press is here this week to sell ads for next year’s newsletter. The sales last year covered the cost
of printing the newsletter and we will even receive a percentage back from the sales. We
greatly appreciate everyone who supports our newsletter.


Director Comments: Cindy McGlynn
 It’s been a busy time. Staff (& participants) are looking forward to the holidays and Medicare


D open enrollment to be over. Everyone seems a bit more on edge with the extra pressure.
 Support from Peers: D. Mix mentioned he knows of three friends/SC participants who were


recently widowed and that the holidays are especially tough for people grieving a loss. C.
McGlynn pointed out how some groups at the SC become like family to some participants.


 News Board: C. Heidenway questioned whether a new bulletin board could be made available
to post obituaries or other community news for participants. C. McGlynn will mention to staff.
D. Mix said he would be willing to assist with the updating of it.


 Tree Decoration: St. Ann’s 2nd grade class came in yesterday to help decorate our tree and
made crafts with Senior Center participants.


Assistant Director Comments: Hollee Camacho
 Medicare Part D: Since November 15, case managers, our intern and trained volunteers have


assisted 108 people with navigating the Medicare.gov website to enroll for a new Rx plan.
Open enrollment continues until December 31.


 Volunteers Coordination: It’s been tasking to find projects for MATC students to fulfill
service hours within their available hours, but with their help we’re in the beginning stages of
starting a Facebook account for the Senior Center, have had help in the kitchen and had
assistance filling our main level ceiling with snowflake decorations!


 Volunteer Recruitment: In our newsletter and the City’s Tower Times we have advertised our
need for more RSVP Drivers and Elder Friend volunteers. Distributed brochures to interested
members. For more information on these and other volunteer opportunities contact me.


 RSVP: All volunteers of the Senior Center (including COA members) have the option to
register with RSVP. The hours you devote to the Senior Center are reported to RSVP;
volunteers are eligible for supplemental accident and liability insurance and fun recognitions.







2


 Monthly Reports: In the process of finishing up reports for November. Will be gone on
vacation the first couple weeks of January, so taking extra time to leave instructions for staff to
complete December reports.


Strategic Plan: Cindy McGlynn
 Everyone please attend next week’s Prioritization Meeting on Tuesday, Dec.14, 1:00- 3:00 PM.
 Once committees have been firmed, action assignments will be distributed to each committee;


some actions will need the help of more than one committee. If you have not already, please
contact Jeanne Schwass-Long & let her know which committee(s) you prefer to serve on!!
--Finance, Public Relations, Program & Evaluation, and/or Volunteer


 H. Camacho will be emailing the action plans to everyone again.


Annual Report: Cindy McGlynn
 Would appreciate your feedback with our Annual Report for 2010.
 Please share any good examples you have received for ideas.
 K. Davis said last year’s was concise and easy-to-read.


COMMITTEE REPORTS: No individual committee reports.
 All COA members are encouraged to re-access their committee standings.
 Please review the Strategic Action Plans for an idea of the types of opportunities each


committee will address in the coming years.
Please contact Jeanne Schwass-Long with your committee(s) assignment preference:
Finance, Public Relations, Program & Evaluation, and/or Volunteer


Meeting Adjourned: Moved K. Davis, seconded by D. Mix to adjourn the meeting. Carried
unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 10:30 AM by K. Krcma


Next Meeting: Tuesday, January 4, 2010 at 10:00 a.m








FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
December 14th, 2010 – 5:00 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Steve Tone, Erik Olstad and Paul Lawrence.


Others Present:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Mayor Donna Olson, Deputy Treasurer
Julie Roberts, Street Superintendant Karl Manthe and Planning Director Rodney
Scheel.


Absent and Excused: Ross Scovotti.


Call to order:
Moved Olstad, by seconded by Lawrence to approve the November 23rd, 2010
minutes as presented. Motion carried 3-0.


Communications:
Sullivan stated that the GFOA Department Head workshop is this Thursday from
9-4.


Recommendation to Approve Change Order – Paradise Pond:
The change order represents the minor adjustment to work on the Paradise Pond
pumping project. Scheel discussed additional rip rap work and erosion control
matting. Stated the change order is very appropriate for the work being done.
Staff recommends approval of change order #1 for $4,312. Moved by Lawrence,
seconded by Olstad to recommend Council approve change order #1 for $4,312.
Motion carried 3-0.


Recommendation to Approve Change Order – Senior Center Parking
Structure:
Scheel stated that during this project the concrete apron adjacent to the parking
deck was found to be significantly recessed and damaged. This work was not part
of the original scope of work, but created a large “bump” onto the new parking
deck surface. After this change order the project will still be completed under
budget by about $15,000. Moved by Olstad, seconded by Lawrence to
recommend Council approve change order #2 for $6,864. Carried 3-0.


Recommendation to Approve Change Order – Storm Water Utility:
Scheel stated that Strand has identified the need to delineate 146 additional
nonresidential properties that have been added or modified since the previous
work contained in the 2005 Stormwater Utility Study. This change order would
authorize the additional work for $3,500. Moved by Olstad seconded by Lawrence







Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
December 14th, 2010
Page 2


to recommend Council approve contingency funds in the amount of $3,500 for the
change order. Carried 3-0.


Public Works – East Main Street Project Alternate Bid:
Manthe stated that $498,000 was the original bid for this project. The original bid
has gone up to $530,000. The additional cost would be $84,000 for the alternate
bid to include an additional block between Henry Street and Amundson Parkway
which would include new curb and gutter, base course, asphalt and sidewalk.
Public Works is looking for a recommendation from Finance for funding. Staff
would like to proceed to have this block be an alternate in the bid. Sullivan stated
that the funds could come from Capital Projects. The EMS project came in under
budget and is looking like it will be completed by the end of the year. It looks like it
will be about $100,000 to $150,000 less than budgeted.


Consideration of Joshua Tilley Claim:
Lawrence would like some attorney recommendation regarding claims and setting
precedent. Is there any state law regarding any municipal liability? Moved by
Olstad, seconded by Lawrence to recommend Council deny the claim. Motion
carried 2-1 with tone voting noe.


Consideration of Jamison-Vinmans Claim:
Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Olstad to recommend Council deny the claim.
Motion carried unanimously.


Recommendation to Approve Resolution #___-10 Regarding Special Fund
Designations Per GASB 54:
The committee reviewed the ordinance for GASB 54 which requires us to classify
all of our special fund balances into nonspendable fund balances. There will be
some additional changes to the resolution and it will be brought back to committee
at the next meeting.


The Meeting May Close Per State Statute 19.85 (1)(e), Deliberating or
Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the Investing of Public
Funds, or Conducting other Specified Public Business, Whenever
Competitive or Bargaining Reasons Require a Closed Session, and then
Reopen for the Regular Course of Business re: Moe Property:
Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Olstad to close the meeting per State Statute
19.85(1)(e). Voted by roll call with Lawrence, Olstad, Tone and Olson voting aye.


Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Olstad reopen the meeting for the regular
course of business.


Future agenda items:
GASB 54 – Stellar Services – Special assessment resolution for Movin’ Out –
Fund transfer for Movin’ Out.







Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
December 14th, 2010
Page 3


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Olstad to adjourn at 6:43pm. Motion carried
unanimously.


Respectfully submitted,
Julie Roberts
Deputy Treasurer








FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
December 27th, 2010 – 5:30 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Steve Tone, Erik Olstad and Ross Scovotti (left at 6:14pm).


Others Present:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Mayor Donna Olson, Deputy Treasurer
Julie Roberts, Parks and Recreation Director Tom Lynch, Alderpersons Greg
Jensen and Sonny Swangstu.


Absent and Excused: Paul Lawrence


Call to order:
Finance Chair Tone called the meeting to order at 5:30pm.


Recommendation for Approval of December 14th, 2010 Minutes:
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Tone to approve the Finance Committee minutes
of December 14th, 2010. Motion carried 2-0 with no quorum.


Communications: None
None.


Contingency Report:


Recommendation for Approval of November Claims:
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Tone to recommend Council approve the
November Claims as presented. Motion carried 2-0 with no quorum.


Recommendation for Approval of November Treasurer’s Report:
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Tone to recommend Council approve the
November Treasurer’s Report as presented. Motion carried 2-0 with no quorum.


Recommendation for Approval of $5,000 to Come from Contingency for
Youth Center Improvements:
Alderperson Jensen suggested that this be brought to Committee. Olstad stated
these monies would be put towards the back roof overhang being brought up to
code, providing a covering where you walk in out front and would also complete
the upstairs floor. Scovotti stated that it was agreed that there would not be any
funds coming from the City for maintenance or construction of the Youth Center
when the new building became available. Moved by Olstad to recommend Council
approve $5,000 to come from contingency in matching funds to apply for a grant.
Motion failed for lack of second.


Recommendation for Approval of Rental Agreement with Community Living
Connections:
Recreation and Youth Center Director Tom Lynch presented a proposed lease
agreement with Community Living Connections to use part of the new Youth
Center building. Scovotti and Tone stated that they would like to have
Alderperson Lawrence review the rental agreement and have Sullivan look into
increasing the liability insurance amount. Moved by Scovotti, seconded by Olstad







Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
December 27th, 2010
Page 2


to recommend Council approve the rental agreement with Community Living
Connections as presented contingent on above. Motion carried 3-0.


Recommendation for Approval of Notice of Release of Option to Repurchase
Property Re: Stellar Services:
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Scovotti to recommend Council approve the Notice
of Release of Option to Repurchase Property Re: Stellar Services. Motion carried
3-0.


Recommendation for Approval of Special Assessment Resolution #R-35-10
Re: Movin’ Out:
Movin’ Out has agreed to a special assessment in the amount of the TIF
increment. Sullivan stated that the development agreement has been signed.
This assessment is for the protection of the City. Moved by Olstad, seconded by
Tone to recommend Council approve Special Assessment Resolution #R-35-10
Re: Movin’ Out. Motion carried 3-0.


Recommendation for Approval of Fund Transfer Re: Movin’ Out:
Finance Director Sullivan is recommending that the City internally finance the TIF
expenses for the Movin’ Out project until the City goes out for the next G.O.
bonding. At that time the interest rates and other factors can be considered to
decided if the TIF funding should be combined with the new borrowing or remain
as internally funded. Moved by Scovotti, seconded by Olstad to recommend
Council approve Fund Transfer Re: Movin’ Out. Motion carried 3-0.


Recommendation to Approve Resolution #R-34-10 Re: Special Fund
Designations Per GASB 54 :
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Tone to recommend Council approve Resolution
#R-34-10 Re: Special Fund Designations per GASB 54. Motion carried 2-0
without a quorum.


Future agenda items:
None.


Motion by Olstad seconded by Olson to adjourn at 6:19pm. Motion carried
unanimously.


Respectfully submitted,
Julie Roberts
Deputy Treasurer








MINUTES
MEETING OF THE PERSONNEL COMMITTEE
Date: Thursday, January 18, 2011 – 5:00 p.m., in the Hall of Fame Room, City Hall.


Personnel: Members Present: Sonny Swagstu (vc), Paul Lawrence, Eric Hohol.
Members Excused: Greg Jenson.


Others Present: Attorney Tom Crone, Mayor Donna Olson, City Clerk Kelly Michaels,
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan, Public Works Director Karl Manthe, Gary Anderson,
Lisa Aide, Chip Vike, Phil Linnerud, John Udsteuen.


Call to Order: Chairperson Sonny Swagstu noted there was a quorum present of
Personnel Committee and the meeting was called to order at 5:20 pm.


CLOSED SESSION:
Motion by Swagstu, second by Hohol to enter into closed session pursuant to
Wisconsin Statute 19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the
purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other
specified public business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed
session. Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Swagstu, Hohol, Lawrence. Motion carried 3-0.


Motion by Hohol, second by Lawrence to enter into open session to meet with the
WPPA-CEA and local union stewards for the purpose of discussion and to exchange
initial proposals reference the CEA Reopener. Motion carried unanimously on voice
vote.


Introductions were made and Attorney Crone indicated they would make the formal
exchange of proposals pursuant to the limited subject matter in the reopener.


Attorney Crone indicated the City’s proposal included no changes in wages, no
reduction in work week, no layoffs and 5 furlough days. He indicated he was
presenting the furlough days as directed by the Council, however for all practical
purposes he acknowledged no other unit included furloughs so that may be a non-
issue.


Gary Anderson presented the union’s proposal which detailed an across the board
wage rate increase of 2.4867% effective 1/1/2011 and 1.6176% effective 7/1/2011. It
was noted that this increase was reflective of the recently settled contract for the
utilities. He noted they have had a cooperative history dating back to 2006 in which
they have consistently settled for less than averages with comparable cities.


Attorney Crone acknowledged the statement but indicated the lower percentage was
tied to differences in their health insurance plan. Crone noted that regrettably the City
of Stoughton has been at the bottom of economic development and growth scale for
many years and as such is unable to afford these wage increases.


Both sides indicated they were at an impasse as neither side was willing to give
concessions to their original proposals. Attorney Crone indicated the next step would
be to move towards mediation & arbitration.







Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes
January 18, 2011
Page 2


Motion by Lawrence, second by Hohol to enter back into closed session pursuant to
Wisconsin Statute 19.85(1)(e) for the purpose of deliberating or negotiating the
purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other
specified public business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed
session. Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Hohol, Lawrence, Swagstu. Motion carried 3-0.


Motion by Lawrence, second by Hohol to adjourn the meeting in closed session.
Motion carried 3-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:15 pm.


Respectfully submitted,


Kelly Michaels
City Clerk/Personnel Director








City of Stoughton
Common Council Minutes
January 25, 2011


Mayor Donna Olson presided at a Regular Meeting of the Common Council of
the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, held in the Council Chambers located
in the Public Safety Building, on Tuesday, January 25, 2011. Mayor Olson noted a
quorum present and called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.


Roll Call / Proclamations/ Presentations:
City Clerk Kelly Michaels called the roll noting the following Alderpersons were


present: Tone, Swangstu, Lawrence, Christianson, McKichan, Chenoweth, Jenson,
Olstad, Hohol, Carter. The following Alderpersons were excused: Weiss, Scovotti.


No proclamations or presentations were made.


Reports / Claims / Communications:
The following were presented and placed on file: City Check Register – Monthly


Claims Report, Utilities Check Register Summary, Community Affairs/Council Policy
Meeting Minutes, Library Board Minutes, Planning Commission Minutes and Personnel
Committee Minutes.


Alderperson Steve Tone reviewed the claims process including the purchasing
policy adopted in 2008. Mayor Olson further explained this process indicating we
would be looking at ordinances as a housekeeping measure to make sure our policy is
not in conflict with the ordinance.


Alderperson Hohol congratulated Alderperson Sonny Swangstu who was named
Citizen of the Year in support of his work in the community and with the Youth Center.


City Planner Rodney Scheel highlighted the Regional Transit Authority Board
which will be meeting in Stoughton this Thursday. He welcomed members to participate
in their outreach efforts and noted he planned to give a summary of our Shared Ride
Taxi service as well. Alderperson Tim Carter pointed out the RTA agenda had indicated
the meeting was on Wednesday but he confirmed it is actually Thursday.


Public Comment:
Brenda Taylor Tummett, 3047 Shore View Drive, spoke to the Council reference


the process at the Plan Commission and noted she was not asked to speak. She
expressed concern that the only information provided was that of the developer. She
spoke against the land division and asked the Council to table the issue to seek
neighborhood input.







January 25, 2011
Common Council Minutes
Page 2


Carl Tummett, 3047 Shore View Drive, noted the developer was to have a
neighborhood meeting to address their concerns. However, the meeting has yet to
occur. He spoke against the land division and asked the Council to delay action until
the neighborhood meeting takes place.


Planner Scheel noted for the record he was not related to the developer, who had a
similarly pronounced name but spelled differently.


Consent Agenda:
Motion by Lawrence, second by Carter to adopt all items on the consent agenda


as presented. Motion carried 10-0.


Minutes of a previous meeting: January 11, 2011


Old Business:
None.


New Business:


R-4-2011
Motion by Hohol, second by Chenoweth to adopt a resolution of the Plan


Commission approving a conditional use permit – Veteran’s of Foreign War Badger
Post #328 (VFW), 200 Veteran Road, Stoughton WI. Motion carried 9-1, with
Christianson casting the dissenting vote.


Alderperson Hohol indicated the conditions were the same as other properties
that have gained permission. Attorney Dregne noted he had reviewed the premise and
wished to share a few issues related to the license itself and ordinance. There is a
license for the sale and consumption of alcohol on the described premise. There is
also an application and process for licensure to obtain permission for outdoor
consumption and an ordinance on the books which exempts VFW in their picnic shelter
area only. The current license indicates a premise description as the bar upstairs and
downstairs. That is significant as this area is legally the only area whereby alcohol is
allowed to be served and consumed. The VFW may be under the false impression they
may sell and serve at any location on their premise. There is also language in the
ordinance which has a provision indicating no alcohol may be served or sold in anything
but one room. This is a problematic ordinance because it is in conflict with where I
suspect alcohol is being served in establishments all over the City. Attorney Dregne
suggested we take a look at the language in this particular ordinance.


Dregne noted that one of the motivating factors is the state’s new smoking law. The
VFW and possibly others are looking for an opportunity to provide a smoking area that
allows their patrons to take their drink with them while they are smoking. There are
completely different rules in play for the structure than those in play for licensure. The
VFW would also need an amendment to its premise description on their license to
describe all areas alcohol is served and there may be other issues. Dregne noted these







January 25, 2011
Common Council Minutes
Page 3


licensing issues would be going before the Public Safety Committee but he wanted to
make sure the folks at the VFW were aware that there are other issues besides getting
permission to build a structure. Dregne also cautioned there would likely be additional
applications coming from other establishments to request similar permissions. Plan
Commission would need to deal with these using factors considering just the structure
and then a second process would be needed to deal with the licensing issue. Dregne
questioned whether they were interested in looking at their process.


Carter wanted to make it clear the issue had not come before the Public Safety
Committee yet. He clarified the only thing before them was for the conditional use
permit as a smoking facility and not an alcohol beverage license. Scheel agreed.


Hohol pointed out there is other applicants that will be looking to do additional things for
the same reasons. He did not believe it was necessary to link the two processes. He
felt they could vote tonight to finish the one part and the alcohol would be a separate
step. Mayor Olson indicated she would be meeting with a representative of the VFW
along with Leck, Scheel and Michaels to talk through these issues. Hohol indicated the
VFW was ok with the conditions.


R-5-2011
Moved by Hohol, second by Chenoweth to adopt a resolution of the Plan


Commission approving an Extraterritorial Land Division – Lot 20, Country Club Estates,
Town of Pleasant Springs. No action.


Motion by Hohol, second by Carter to table the resolution to allow the Township
to act on the land division first. Motion carried 10-0.


Scheel indicated the Town of Pleasant Springs is responsible to determine the lot sizes
and should be following the wishes of their constituents. This action is for the
extraterritorial land division and the resolution requires the town to take responsibility as
such.


Carter noted he would oppose because it is a land division less than 1 acre within our
extraterritorial jurisdiction. He noted he had received a concern from a constituent that
informed him more than 50% of neighbors are not in favor of this division and that the
developer is not abiding by deed restrictions. Tone questioned the timing of the two
meetings. Scheel indicated he was not aware of any timing requirements.


R-6-2011
Motion by Tone, second by Carter to adopt a resolution of the Finance


Committee authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to execute Change Order
#1 as it relates to the EMS Remodeling Project. Motion carried on a Roll Call Vote of
10-0. Roll Call Ayes: Swangstu, Lawrence, Christianson, McKichan, Chenoweth,
Jenson, Olstad, Hohol, Carter, Tone.







January 25, 2011
Common Council Minutes
Page 4


Christianson questioned whether the EMS was an enterprise fund and whether
we are fronting them and why they are asking the council for permission. Sullivan
noted that the remodeling project involved borrowed funds. She further explained the
council would act anytime there is a change.


Motion by Lawrence, second by Christianson to adjourn the meeting. Motion
carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 7:38 pm.


Respectfully submitted,


Kelly Michaels, WCMC, CMC
City Clerk/Personnel Director








City of Stoughton, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton WI 535898


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to pay the claim of Mary Erickson


Committee Action: Recommend Denial 4-0 with Olson voting


Fiscal Impact: $405.00


File Number: R- 7-2011 Date Introduced: February 8th, 2011


WHEREAS, a claim has been filed against the City of Stoughton by Mary Erickson, 102 North Prairie
Street, Stoughton WI, 53589 for damages in the amount of $405.00 and


WHEREAS, the claim involved a sewer back up at the residential property listed above on January 3,
2011 and


WHEREAS, your insurance carrier, CVMIC has reviewed all the circumstances of the claim and has
recommended the claim be disallowed as the City of Stoughton has a well established maintenance and
inspection program which allows the City to meet the standard of care required and is unable to control
what other parties may put into the sewer system, and


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on January 25, 2011 to consider the claim and recommends
the determination of CVMIC be sustained and the claim be denied, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official be
hereby authorized and directed to pay the claim for Mary Erickson in an amount of $405.00.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
January 25, 2011 – 5:30 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Steve Tone, Erik Olstad and Paul Lawrence.


Others Present:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Mayor Donna Olson, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts,
Planning Director Rodney Scheel and City Clerk Personnel Director Kelly Michaels.


Absent and Excused: Ross Scovotti.


Call to order:
Finance Chair Tone called the meeting to order at 5:30pm.


Mary Erickson Sewer Claim:
CVMICs recommendation was to deny. Moved by Lawrence, seconded by Olstad to recommend
Council deny the Mary Erickson claim. Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Olson voting.







Maria ~~~~n_~, ~. '-I
From: Tom Mann [tem@cvmic,comj


Sent: Monday, Jan uary 10, 2011 10:54


1


AM


To: Maria Hougan


Subject: EFtickson v Stoughton; DOL: 1-03-11


Pili


Page 1 of 1


I am in receipt of the above claim that has been filed against the City of Stoughton in the amount of 705,00, It is
my understanding that the claimant has alle~ed ~amages as a result of a sewer backup, As you are aware, sewer
backups are specifically excluded from coverage lnder Section VII (1) and as such, there is no coverage for this
claim or any other claims from this incident.


However, I would suggest that you check to see il the City is complying with their established maintenance
program and when the last time this area w~s inspected. If there was no prior notice of a problem and the City is
complying with the established maintenance proigram, it would be my recommendation that this claim be
denied as it is my opinion that the City is mekting the standard of care that is required for these types of
situations.


If on the other hand, the City had prior notice anb failed to take corrective action within a reasonable amount of
time and is not complying with the •• d ~aintenance program, consideration should be given to settling
this matter.


I


I would also suggest that you check with your water department to see if they can determine the cause of this
incident, If this incident was caused due to a otrier party putting objects in your sewer line, I would recommend
that this claim be denied as you can not conJrol that other parties put in your system,


If you have further questions, please feel frel to contact me.


<:n:ns I. WLLAJ;U
I


"~ .'C'; HIJ'l:1J.AL r~MH¢1:ii


This communi~~on along with:O~~:t'l'tachmLts is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which
it was addressed. It may contain informationlthat is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under
applicable law. Ifthe reader of this message is n~t the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible
for delivering the message to the intended rJcipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, or copying of this communicati1n is ftrictlY prohibited. If you received this communication in error,
please notify the original sender immediately by felephone or return e-mail and delete this message along with
any attachments from your computer and dJstrqy any printed copies. Thank you,


Tom Mann


111112011







Mary Erickson
102 N Prairie St
Stoughton WI 53589


January 7, 2011


RE: RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF crAlr


Dear Mary:


PLEASE BE ADVISED that this 0~ic1' on the 6th day of January, 2011, received a
document submitted by you entitled, ~otice of Claim pursuant to Wisconsin Statute
839.80, which will be investigated Iby an authorized representative of the City of
Stoughtdn. Depending upon the ~esult of the City's investigation, your claim may be
paid, disallowed, or compromised.1 Claims which are filed for a specific dollar amount,
which are not paid or compromise~, will be submitted to the Common Council for
disallowance. When a claim is disalldwed by the Common Council, a lawsuit must be
commenced within six (6) months lof ~our receipt of the written notice of disallowance or
the claim will be forever barred under state law.


mph
cc: Tom Mann, CVMIC


Sincerely,


Maria P. Hougan
Deputy City Clerk







I


Stoughton Utilities


660 South Fourth Street
I P.O. Box 383


Stoughton, WI 53589-0383


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Needs Since 1886


Date: January 19, 2011 I


Maria (Pili) Hougan - Stoughton Deputy City Clerk and Confidential SecretaryTo:


From: Brian G. Erickson - StoUghtor Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor


Potential Wastewater cilim at 102 N. Prairie Street.Subject:


On Monday, January 3, 2011 at approximately 6:00 p.rn., Stoughton Utilities (SU) employee Martin
Seffens was dispatched to 102 N. Prairie Street in response to wastewater backing up into the basement.
Upon Mr. Seffens' arrival, the homeowner had a contractor on site to clear her lateral. The contractor
noted that the lateral was clear and the Jlock~ge appeared to be in the sewer main. Mr. Seffens flushed
the sewer main and encountered an obstruction about 120 feet upstream of the downstream manhole.
Mr. Seffens cleared the obstruction and the flow went down in the homeowner's basement. The
contractor for the owner noted that there ras a large root ball in a downstream latera! that was
obstructing the flow line in the sewer mairl.


On January 4, 2011, SU employees Scott Gunsolus and Paul Johnson televised and cleaned the sewer
main and found three laterals in that vicinity to have root intrusion from there laterals into the sewer main.
It was apparent that the cause of this sewer nrain blockage was from the root intrusion from the privately-
owned homeowner's laterals at 103, 1071andlor 108 S. Prairie Street. The sewer main was last cieaned
in the fall 01' 2010 and recently slip lined. I notified the three homeowners of the laterals experiencing root
intrusion into the sewer main and request that their sewer laterals be inspected and cleaned.


The claimant at 102 N. Prairie Street has had Iroot intrusion in the lateral in the past. The homeowner has ..
their lateral cleaned on a regular basis Ito prevent back-ups into their basement. Stoughton Ut~l!ties.
experienced root intrusion in the sewer main as well in the past. In 2004 and 2006 the sewer main on
Prairie Street was lined. Stoughton Utilities has received several sewer calls over the past years with
sewer back-ups but all of them were deternrined to be within their private laterals. The sewer main
appears to be in good working condition. I ounl inspection indicates that root intrusion from private laterals
continues to be an issue in this area.


cc: Sean 0 Grady - Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. - Stoughton Utilities Director
Kelly S. Michaels - Stoughton Cit~ Cle~k and Personnel Director


,'.


Office 608-873-3379
IFax 608-873-4878


stoughtonutilities.com







City of Stoughton
381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589
(608) 873-6677


NOTICE OF CLAIM


Estimate of Damage
Auto: $---:-----::=r--
Property: $ la,,« 67!-


Personal Injury: $ ~
Other: $~O()( tF
(Specify:" ¥o r;:n


~~


I CLAIM
(NOTE: You are not required to make a claim at this time. As long as you have filed the above
Notice of Claim you may file a claim with the City of Stoughton at any time consistent with the
applicable statute of limitations. However, in order for the City of Stoughton to formally accept or
deny your claim at this time, the following claim must be completed, with a dollar amount, and
signed.)


The undersigned hereby makes a clait against the City of Stoughton arising out of the
circumstances described above. The claim ISfor relief In the form of money damages In the
amoun~: and non-monetary relief as follows.


. ~ (cross out if not applicable)


Signed~ . I. , Date r~ t) {)D / I
Addrev- 0 I


Q5 7'- It?? 56 5?1







HONEY WAGON SERVICES, INC.
·P.O. Box 139


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 53589·0139
Phone 873·6726


TERMS: Invoices 30 days past due will be assesed at 1~%
per month service charge on the unpaid balance.


CUSTOMER'S'ORDEI'f NO. HONE DATE


,.....3- 1
NAME


.......m~~~ J'."-.~.~~~.")~... . .
ADDRESS \.)


........JP..1:::..t:-? ..~('.~:' ..r..~.~.?.b. .
t;\b.."....~~


?'?..~~~ ..~~:~h~.~r?:~ ~~J' I .


::~~::rt~~""~=r:=tt1=1:_
!


...•....................... / .


/......:.......................................................... · .. ·r..· 1....· ·,···..
~)L t-'tl>V TAX I


RECEIVED BY


.5onY'\. ~. ~K I TOTAL It-ioGl DI)


All claims and returned goods2 7 8 7 MUST be accompanied by this bill. cz-hank C}VU








City of Stoughton, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to pay the claim of Mary K. Martinson.


Committee Action: Recommend Denial 4-0 with Olson voting


Fiscal Impact: $1,913.20


File Number: R- 8-2011 Date Introduced: February 8th, 2011


WHEREAS, a claim has been filed against the City of Stoughton by Mary K. Martinson, 2085 Green
Road, Stoughton WI, 53589 for damages in the amount of $1,913.20 and


WHEREAS, the claim involved a slip and fall incident on the sidewalk at the Library location on the
corner of 4th and Main Street and


WHEREAS, your insurance carrier, CVMIC has reviewed all the circumstances of the claim and has
determined the City is immune from liability based on Wisconsin Statute 893.83 which states “no action
may be maintained to recover damages for injuries sustained by reason of an accumulation of snow or
ice upon any bridge or highway, unless the accumulation existed for 3 weeks”. (Courts have recognized
public sidewalks as falling under the definition of a highway) and


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee met on January 25, 2011 to consider the claim and recommends
the determination of CVMIC be sustained and the claim be denied, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official be
hereby authorized and directed to pay the claim for Mary K. Martinson in an amount of $1,913.20.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
January 25, 2011 – 5:30 p.m.
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room


Present:
Alderpersons Steve Tone, Erik Olstad and Paul Lawrence.


Others Present:
Finance Director/Treasurer Laurie Sullivan, Mayor Donna Olson, Deputy Treasurer Julie Roberts,
Planning Director Rodney Scheel and City Clerk Personnel Director Kelly Michaels.


Absent and Excused: Ross Scovotti.


Call to order:
Finance Chair Tone called the meeting to order at 5:30pm.


Mary Martinson Claim:
CVMIC recommends denial of this claim. In their opinion the City is using reasonable care in
maintaining their sidewalks as the area was inspected and cleaned up two days prior to the incident.
Moved by Olstad, seconded by Lawrence to recommend Council deny the claim. Motion carried 4-0
with Mayor Olson voting.







Kelly Michaels


From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:


Tom Mann [tem@cvmic.Joml
Wednesday, January 19, 12011 10:25 AM
Kelly Michaels
Martinson v Stoughton; OL:12-29-10


Kelly


I am in receipt of the above claim for damages that as been filed against the City of Stoughton in the amount of
1,913.20 for injuries as a result of a slip and fall by thF library. Based on the information that I have received, it is my
opinion that the City is immune from liability based on Wis. Stat. 893.83 and would therefore recommend that this claim
be denied.


According to the weather reports that I have receive?, there was 2.5 inches of snowfall on December 21, 2010. Wis. Stat.
893.83(1) states that "No action may be maintaihed fO recover damages for injuries sustained by reason of an
accumulation of snow or ice upon any bridge or highray, unless the accumulation existed for 3 weeks". The courts have
recognized that public sidewalks as falling under the deflnition of a highway.


Even if this statute would not apply, I would still recornrnend that this claim be denied as it is my opinion that the City is
using reasonable care to maintain their sidewalks as he City inspected this area two days prior to this incident and did
cleanup.


Should you have further questions regarding this ma ter, please feel free to contact me.


Tom Mann


CITUS •• vtLlAGU


MlUTUAI.ffI$UUNc:t


COMitANV


This communication along with any attachments
l


is i1tended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it was
addressed. It may contain information that is privile~ed, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the
message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, or copying of this
communication is strictly prohibited. If you received fhiS communication in error, please notify the original sender
immediately by telephone or return e-rnail and dele ,ethis message along with any attachments from your computer
and destroy any printed copies. Thank you.


1







Kelly Michaels


To:
Subject:


Rodney J. Scheel I
RE: Martinson v Stought n; DOL:12-29-10


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Sent: Tuesday, January 18, 2011 3:26 PM
To: Donna Olson; Kelly Michaels
Subject: RE: Martinson v Stoughton; DOL:12-29-10


Mayor and Kelly,


I have attached an outline of dates that we conducte snow/ice maintenance at our City building locations with the
associated snowfall and precipitation records forlSto ghton. I have also attached the source weather data sheets. Our
routine maintenance includes snow blowing, shoreli g and salting. I believe the frequency in which we provided this
type of service at our City Buildings reinforces our "i spection" process even though daily "inspection" logs are not
maintained for each building. Based on this data, we conducted cleanup efforts 2 days prior to this event.


While we cannot guarantee that these properties arlcomPletelY ice/snow free at all times, we believe reasonable care
and methods have been used to frequently maintain the sidewalks. I do not believe the City has been negligent in these
efforts.


I look forward to having a teleconference to discuss t e ongoing data collection expectations with CVMIC and how they
may relate to this claim. Please let me know ift~ere is additional information we can provide.


Rodney Scheel
City of Stoughton
Director of Planning & Development


608.873.6619 P
608.873.5519 f


1







Snow Maintenance at City Buildings by Planning Department Staff


Dates work was completed
between 11/21/2010 and 1/15/2011:


12/1
12/4
12/6
12/8
12/9
12/10
12/12
12/13
12/14
12/17
12/21
12/25
12/27


2.5 inch snow and .27 precipitation


1.5 inch snow lnd 12 precipitation


2.5 inch snow and 20 precipitation


12/30 had .01 pre ipitation
12/31 had .02 preoipitation
trace precipitation
1/5/2011
1/6/2011
trace precipitation


1/4/2011


1/7
1/8
1/11
1/12
1/13
1/14
1/15


trace precipitation
trace precipitation


1.0 inch snow and 04 precipitation
1.5 inch snow and 14 precipitation
trace precipitation


. . I.
trace precipttation
2.5 inch snow ~nd 12 precipitation







Daily Data Page 1 of 1


I NOWData - NO,AAOnline Weather Data


STOUGHTON (478229)
Observed Daily Data
Month: Dee 2010


Day MaxT MinT AvgT HOD COO Pepn Snow Snwg
1 35 20 27.5 37 0 T 0.0 0
2 25 16 20.5 44 0 T 0.0 0
3 30 14 22.0 43 0 0.00 0.0 0
4 28 14 21. 0 44 0 0.27 2.5 2
5 25 12 18.5 46 0 M 0.0 2
6 14 8 11.0 54 0 0.00 0.0 2
7 19 8 13 .5 51 0 0.00 0.0 2
8 21 8 14.5 50 0 0.00 0.0 2
9 22 3 12.5 52 0 0.00 0.0 2


10 29 11 20.0 45 0 0.12 1.5 4
11 33 21 27.0 38 0 0.00 0.0 3
12 37 9 23.0 42 0 M M 8
13 30 3 16.5 48 0 0.00 0.0 8
14 10 -6 2.0 63 0 0.00 0.0 8
15 14 -9 2.5 62 0 0.00 0.0 8
16 18 -8 5.0 60 0 0.00 0.0 8
17 20 12 16.0 49 0 0.00 0.0 8
18 19 3 11.0 54 0 0.00 0.0 8
19 17 4 10.5 54 0 0.00 0.0 7
20 11 3 7.0 58 0 0.00 0.0 7
21 29 11 20.0 45 0 0.20 2.5 10
22 31 19 25.0 40 0 0.00 0.0 10
23 33 21 27.0 38 0 0.00 0.0 9
24 27 22 24.5 40 0 0.00 0.0 9
25 29 21 25.0 40 0 0.00 0.0 9
26 26 17 21.5 43 0 0.00 0.0 9
27 19 10 14.5 50 0 0.00 0.0 9
28 22 7 14.5 50 0 0.00 0.0 9
29 24 8 16.0 49 0 0.00 0.0 9
30 37 13 25.0 40 0 0.01 0.0 7
31 44 35 39.5 25 0 0.02 0.0 4


Smry 25.1 10.6 17.9 1454 0 0.62 6.5 5.9


Official data and data for additionallocatipns and years are available from the Regional Climate
Centers and the National Climatic Data Center.


111812011http://nowdata.rcc-acis.orglMKX/pubACIS_ esults







Daily Data Page 1 of 1


NOWData - NOAA Online Weather Data


STOUGHTON (478229)
Observed Daily Data
Month: Jan 2011


Day MaxT MinT AvgT HOD COD Pcpn Snow Snwg
1 40 9 24.5 40 0 0.00 0.0 0
2 23 8 15.5 49 0 0.00 0.0 0
3 22 20 21. 0 44 0 0.00 0.0 0
4 28 22 25.0 40 0 T M M
5 22 3 12.5 52 0 T 0.0 0
6 25 4 14.5 50 0 T 0.0 0
7 22 12 17.0 48 0 T 0.0 0
8 17 9 13.0 52 0 0.00 0.0 0
9 20 2 11.0 54 0 0.00 0.0 0


10 28 11 19.5 45 0 0.00 0.0 0
11 31 14 22.5 42 0 0.04 1.0 1
12 25 18 21.5 43 0 0.14 1.5 2
13 27 13 20.0 45 0 T T 2
14 23 10 16.5 48 0 T T 2
15 21 14 17.5 47 0 0.12 2.5 4
16 22 5 13.5 51 0 0.00 0.0 4
17 21 14 17.5 47 0 0.04 0.5 5
18 M M M M M M M M
19 M M M M M M M M
20 M M M M M M M M
21 M M M M M M M M
22 M M M M M M M M
23 M M M M M M M M
24 M M M M M M M M
25 M M M M M M M M
26 M M M M M M M M
27 M M M M M M M M
28 1'1 M M M M M M M
29 M M M M M M M M
30 1'1 M M M M M M M
31 M M M M M M M M


Smry 24.5 11.1 17.8 797 0 0.34 5.5 1.2


Official data and data for additional locations and years are available from the Regional Climate
Centers and the National Climatic Data CInter.


111812011http://nowdata.rcc-acis.org/MKX/pubA CIS esults







NOTICIE OF CLAIM


Incident/Accident Information
Date: 12etP1fntY'I- 21 J 20lD
Time: CLb.)(I~ !f/~ I. ~.
Location:C.~rner =21-)) and meun $i-. J 011 S)~/v?LI..JCllk_ o"c'f-s,4e- of Li bra CJ


I'
, , CIRCU~STANCES OF CLAIM
In the space below briefly describe the ci~cumstances of your claim. (Attach addition sheets, if
necessary.) For auto damages attach a copy of the police report, if any, and attach a diagram of
the accident scene including north, south! east or west corners if the accident occurred at an
intersection. For personal injury, indicate the nature of the injury and whether or not medical
attention was given and give the name of the attending physician. For property, describe events
that led to damage. For all damages, attach estimates for repair or replacement. Also identify any
witnesses to the incident/accident., wi...i:iv


RECEIVED
JAN 142011


CITY OF STOUGHTON


l.9'/}a/~d:..Yl) L-i/.I77/G
/;;-"1'/0)0// <3 '7!/!JP <2,1r 07


City of Stoughton
381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589
(608) 873-6677


Estimate of Damage
Auto: $ _
Property: $ --,


Personal Injury: $ \q \3.20 t:.-rnefj~
Other: $ eoom 8~II
(Specify: _


CLAIM
(NOTE: You are not required to make a cllaim at this time. As long as you have filed the above
Notice of Claim you may file a claim with ~heCity of Stoughton at any time consistent with the
applicable statute of limitations. However, in order for the City of Stoughton to formally accept or
deny your claim at this time, the followingl claim must be completed, with a dollar amount, and
signed.)


The undersigned hereby makes a claim against the City of Stoughton arising out of the
circumstances described above, Thel claIm is for relief in the form of money damages in the
amount of $ /9/3" zo and .non mORflt3P/ relief as f0l1oIM,s: _


(cross out if not applicable)


. "3,'Date,~. \' I 2..01 \







STOUGHTON HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
900 RIDGE STREET


STOUGHTON WI 535891896


MARTINSON, MARY K 12/31/10


MARTINSON, MARY K
2085 GREEN RD


STOUGHTON, WI !5 3589


EMERGENCY E 1


3973344


608-873-8626 REPPLINGER, MICHAEL 03-31-48


5/06/1962 7444612/31/10 00066623202


5001 DEAN CARE


8001 ACCIDENT INSURANCE


0350 CT SCAN
5200019 HEAD W/O IV CONTRAST 12/31/2010 1 70450 1,296.85


** srom ** 1 1,296.85


0450 EMERGENCY ROOM
3500071 ER LOW LEVEL 12/31/2010 1 99282 244.95


** srOT~ ** 1 244.95


0981 PRO FEE/ER
3701463 EMERGENCY ROOM LEVEL IV 12/31/2010 1 99284 371.40


** SIOTAL.. 1 371.40


*** TOTAL CH GES --> 1,913.20


1,913.20








File # Committee CONSENT AGENDA* Recommend


Minutes of a previous meeting: January 25, 2011


File # Committee OLD BUSINESS Recommend


None


File # Committee NEW BUSINESS Recommend


R-7-2011 Finance Resolution authorizing and directing city official(s) to pay the claim of Mary


Erickson. Denial 4-0


R-8-2011 Finance Resolution authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to pay the claim of


Mary K. Martinson.
Denial 4-0


ADJOURNMENT


BY: Mayor Donna Olson


City Clerk Kelly Michaels, CMC, WCMC


Please note that items taken on the Consent Agenda will not be discussed. Any individual


council member may request an item be removed from consent.


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals


through appropriate aids & services. For information or to request this service, please contact the


City Clerk at (608) 873-6692


Steve Tone, Larry Weiss, Sonny Swangstu, Paul Lawrence, Ron Christianson, Dave


McKichan, Carl Chenoweth, Greg Jenson, Ross Scovotti, Eric Olstad, Eric Hohol, Tim Carter


2010 Room Tax Report (Treasurer), Financial Summary November 2010-YTD (Utilities),


Statistical Information 2010 Useage (Utilities)


Public Comment


CALL TO ORDER


Reports / Claims / Communications


Arts Council 1/4/2011, Commission on Aging 12/7/2010, Finance Committee 12/14/2010 &


12/27/2010, Personnel Committee 1/18/2011, Tree Commission 12/9/2010, Utilities


Commission 12/20/2010


Update ref: Filing a Request for Mediation of Union Contract


Roll Call / Proclamations / Presentations


Location:
Members:


Tuesday, February 8, 2011 @ 7:00 pm.
Council Chambers/Public Safety Building (321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton WI 53589)


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA


Meeting of the:
Date / Time:


Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold a


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below.


This notice was faxed to Media and posted on the City's Notice Board and Website on: 2/4/2011 @ 8:00 am.


COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON








Comfort


Inn/Stoughton


Hotel Stoughton Inn Naeset Roe Inn


Norse


Chalet/Total


Package


Total Room


Taxes Paid


Quarter


Total Paid to


Tourism=


70%


Total Paid to


Chamber=


20%


City


Portion=


10%
2010


Quarter 1 4,292.43 1,792.65 430.05 130.20 6,645.33$ 4,651.73 1,329.07 664.53
Quarter 2 8,690.50 3,840.72 594.97 97.20 13,223.39$ 9,256.37 2,644.68 1,322.34
Quarter 3 7,969.92 5,041.03 668.31 172.20 13,851.46$ 9,696.02 2,770.29 1,385.15
Quarter 4 Not Paid 4,076.48 2,298.31 571.66 108.21 2,978.18$ 2,084.73 595.64 297.82


Total 2010 20,952.85 12,972.71 2,264.99 507.81 36,698.36$ 25,688.85$ 7,339.67$ 3,669.84$


2010 Balance


Outstanding $4,076.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 $4,076.48 $2,853.54 $815.30 $407.64














































1


Minutes Stoughton Arts Council – Jan 4, 2011


PRESENT: Mary-Carel Verden, Amy McFarland, Christina, John Beutel, Bill Howard
EXCUSED: Coleen Kehl, Kathryn Jones, Dave Phillips


1) Call to Order - 4:05 p.m.
2) Minutes from October – Minutes Beutel, McFarland seconded, motion carried.
3) Discussed Mission and projects for the year. Supports a directed effort toward


building the identity of Stoughton as an Arts City both in and out-of-town.
•Will continue to pursue outdoor as an idea


4) Mural for Youth Center – discussion centered around the need to find a champion to
pursue. Call for volunteers could go on website.


5) Newsletter – needs to get started this year.
6) Yahara River Show—spring version planning is underway – possibly benefit the arts


council.
7) Grant for Phantom Art Gallery – existing or commissioned art, must be viewable


24/7. McFarland moved to apply, Howard seconded, motion carried. Focus will be
Syttende Mai. Forms will be circulated by email to keep it moving.


8) New Membership drive discussed. Make this as part of the communications push.
9) Next meeting – Feb 1, 4 p.m.
10) Adjournment –at 4:45, Howard moved, Beutel seconded. Motion carried.


Respectfully submitted,
Mary-Carel Verden





